ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON EDUCATI ON
March 28, 2001
8:10 a. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Con Bunde, Chair
Representative Brian Porter
Representative Joe G een
Representati ve Peggy W1 son
Representative Gary Stevens
Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e
Representati ve G etchen Guess

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BILL NO 94

"An Act relating to initiatives for quality schools; relating to
pupi |l conpetency testing and the issuance of secondary school
di pl omas; relating to certain reports regarding academc
performance of schools; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO 166
"An Act relating to the year in which public school student
conpetency testing begins."

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 105
"An Act relating to the base student allocation used in the
formula for state funding of public education; and providing for
an effective date."

- BILL POSTPONED
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HB 94

SHORT TI TLE: PUPI L COVPETENCY TEST; ANNUAL
SPONSCR(S): RLS BY REQUEST CF THE GOVERNOR

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -1- March 28, 2001



Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

01/ 26/ 01 0171 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
01/ 26/ 01 0171 (H EDU, HES
01/ 26/ 01 0172 (H) FN1: ZERO( EED)
01/ 26/ 01 0172 (H GOVERNOR S TRANSM TTAL LETTER
01/ 26/ 01 0172 (H REFERRED TO EDU
02/ 14/ 01 (H EDU AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106
02/ 14/ 01 (H Heard & Held
02/ 14/ 01 (H M NUTE( EDU)
02/ 28/ 01 (H) EDU AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106
02/ 28/ 01 (H Heard & Held
02/ 28/ 01 (H M NUTE( EDU)
03/07/01 (H EDU AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106
03/07/01 (H Heard & Held
M NUTE( EDU)
03/ 14/ 01 (H EDU AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106
03/ 14/ 01 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard
03/ 21/ 01 (H) EDU AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106
03/21/01 (H Heard & Held
M NUTE( EDU)
03/ 28/ 01 (H EDU AT 8: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE

W TNESS REG STER

BRUCE JOHNSQN, Deputy Conmi ssi oner

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent

801 West Tenth Street, Suite 200

Juneau, Al aska 99801- 1894

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information related to HB 94.

KAREN McCARTHY, Staff to Representative Bunde

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 501

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information related to conceptual
anendnents to HB 94.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 01-18, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAIR CON BUNDE called the House Special Committee on Education
neeting to order at 8:10 a.m Representati ves Bunde, Porter,

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 2- March 28, 2001



Green, WIson, Stevens, Joule, and Guess were present at the
call to order

HB 94- PUPI L COVPETENCY TEST; ANNUAL EDUC. REPORT

Nunmber 0069

CHAI R BUNDE announced that the neeting would be a work session
on HOUSE BILL NO 94, "An Act relating to initiatives for
quality schools; relating to pupil conpetency testing and the
i ssuance of secondary school diplomas; relating to certain
reports regardi ng academ c perfornmance of schools; and providing
for an effective date.” He noted that the conmttee had before
it a work draft of HB 94 and that there were proposed anmendnents
for the conmttee's consideration.

Number 177
REPRESENTATI VE PORTER noved to adopt CSHB 94(EDU) Version F as
the working docunent before the conmmttee. There was no
obj ecti on.

CHAI R BUNDE directed commttee nenbers' attention to a sheet in
their packets, a side-by-side analysis conparing the governor's
proposed HB 94 and the proposed CS. There is no change proposed
in Section 1, the intent | anguage.

Number 0279

CHAI R BUNDE noted that Section 4 of the CS requires reporting of
seven indicators that would show the progress of schools toward
hi gh academ c perfornmance. He said Section 3 in both versions
addresses the special education Individual Education Program
(IEP) diploma. Soneone who is on an |IEP with accommodati ons can
achieve a high school diploma wusing those accommdations.
Section 3 also allows for reciprocity between school districts.

Number 0383
REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked what woul d happen if a student were
to transfer from a state where there are no conpetency

requirenents.

CHAIR BUNDE said that would be addressed in one of the
anmendnent s.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 3- March 28, 2001



CHAI R BUNDE then turned attention to Section 3 of the CS, which
allows a special education student to earn a diplona in one of
three ways: pass all three sections of the conpetency test
W t hout accommopdations, pass with accomodations called for in
the student's IEP, or denonstrate mastery through a portfolio

If the student does not pass in any of those ways, the CS calls
for awarding a certificate of achievenent (instead of a diplom
or a certificate of attendance) which shows the portions of the
test that the student has passed, his or her attendance record,
and any enploynent-related skills.

CHAI R BUNDE pointed out that Sections 5 of the CS changes the
beginning date from January 1, 2006, to February 1, 2004.
Section 5 of the governor's bill has been del eted.

CHAIR BUNDE noted that Section 6 in both versions deals wth
interim neasures for testing. The CS calls for the test scores
to be shown on a student's diploma as well as on his or her
transcript. In addition, the test will be given once a year (to
a student who has not yet passed it) unless the student's |EP
t eam recomends agai nst doi ng so.

Number 0735

CHAI R BUNDE then noted that Section 2 of the CS differs fromthe
original HB 94, reflecting a change nade in the Senate deleting
the nunber of years limting when a student can take the test.
The change allows a person who left school without a diploma to
cone back and take the test and get a high school diplom
i nstead of a General Equival ency D pl oma.

Nunber 0812
REPRESENTATI VE GREEN asked about the portfolio.

CHAIR BUNDE said the portfolio is an option that he would Iike
to make available to school districts to allow one nore way in
whi ch students can denonstrate mastery. The portfolio would be
applicable to students who are unable to take tests for whatever
reason.

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN voi ced concern about a student com ng from

anot her school district and bringing a portfolio that shows he
has proficiency when in reality he does not.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -4- March 28, 2001



CHAI R BUNDE explained that the portfolio would be one prepared
in Alaska and showing mastery of this state's educational
requirenents.

Number 0906

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON said students in her district's schools
now have portfolios that travel with them through the grades.
She asked if that was the sort of thing being discussed.

CHAIR BUNDE said that was a classic portfolio, and that
"portfolio" connotes work created over a lengthy tinme, not just
in the final two nonths of a senior year.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS clarified that the portfolio being
di scussed was not for the majority of students, but for those on
an | EP.

CHAIR BUNDE saw it as a possible tool, and could not anticipate
how it m ght be used in every situation.

Number 1000

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS expressed concern about equity for
students in the mddle range if students at the extrenes are
bei ng gi ven speci al di spensati on.

CHAIR BUNDY said he thought the commttee wants to make the
testing as fair and equitable as possible, but "there is always
sonmeone somewhere who's going to find a | oophole, and we want to
cl ose as many obvi ous ones as possible.”

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS wanted to know who gets an |EP, and
wondered if there would be a whol esal e novenent of students into
that type of program He also wondered whether the process
i nvol ved was controlled by the school district.

CHAIR BUNDE said he would ask the Department of Education and
Early Devel opnent (DOE) for the answers. It is his
understanding that for an IEP to be established, it takes both
the district personnel -- teacher, principal, guidance counsel or
-- and the parent's approval. He shared Representative Stevens

concern that some districts mght try to push hard-to-educate
kids into an IEP "to take the pressure off." "Wth the
requi renent for parental approval and the reporting that we're
going to get back, if all of a sudden there is a huge bunp in
IEP ..., then it's incunbent on us to have a serious talk wth

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 5- March 28, 2001



that district," he said. He thinks that parents of children who
are not "classic special ed students"” are unlikely to sign off
on an | EP.

Nunmber 1158

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON said there are nmany people involved,
testing and "tons of paperwork” that accunulate to support an
|EP. If the |IEP system were being used inappropriately, a bulge
woul d show up in the systemlong before graduation tine.

CHAIR BUNDE said it would also be apparent if students were
being put into IEPs in the mddle of their senior year.

Nunber 1209

REPRESENTATI VE PORTER observed that as HB 94 is constructed now
as relates to portfolios, are we asking DOE ... [indisc.]

CHAIR BUNDE said he wants nore input from DCE about the
portfolio. It is an option that sone schools use very
effectively, he said, and he did not want to preclude its use
al though he didn't think many people would opt for it because it
requires a great deal of work.

Nunber 1251

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN sought clarification, saying:
| think I got a different answer from you than what
you gave to Representative Stevens when | asked about
portfolio from [a district outside the state], you
said it was our portfolio. But what | heard you say
to him was, they'll conme in with some sort of a

portfolio because you can't establish one overnight,
and we have a very big transient population which
means we'll probably have a lot of people comng in
m d-four-year-period in the high school, and a |ot of
those will be comng in from places that may not hold
the sane standards we do. How do we establish that
with a portfolio that may be fl awed by our standards?

CHAI R BUNDE noted that was a concern he had heard frommlitary
famlies who cone to Alaska with children who are in their

junior or senior years. "That is part of the waiver option we
have to talk about because ... we're granting them a diplona
that says they are functionally literate, ... and if they have

conme from an area or background where they are not functionally

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 6- March 28, 2001



literate, we're telling the world they' re sonething they're not;
and, even worse, we're telling the students they have abilities

that they nmay not have." O hers have expressed very strong
concern about average students coming in who have not been asked
to denonstrate their know edge the way our students wll be.

That's what the waiver is tal king about, he said.

CHAIR BUNDE said a question to which he does not yet have an
answer is who does the evaluation of the portfolio and what is
the nechanism for doing so. The State School Board wants to
weigh in on this, but is unable to do so at this tine. Chai r
Bunde said he has drafted an anmendnent that would give the board
until next January to give DOE strong recommendati ons. "Then
DCE gives us its recommendation, and then we pick and choose in
our wi sdomwhich is the right way to go," he said

Number 1414

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN wondered if thought had been given "to the
fact that here conmes Johnson from Hi ckory Ri dge, Arkansas, and
he is a first- or second-senester senior. Wuld it be possible
that we continue his education and |let those records be known in
Hickory Ridge so that he can graduate from there rather than
graduating from here and having to ... waive or do other things
...[to give him an Al aska dipl oma?"

CHAI R BUNDE said he had not thought about that. "I't would be
hi ghly dependent upon the cooperation of H ckory Ridge."

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN thought there is sone point in the high
school career at which nore of the high school work has been
done in a different high school.

CHAIR BUNDE noted that the typical mlitary youngster has been
in three schools. "Who's going to accept responsibility?" he
asked. "And think of the paperwork involved ...."

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN said his concern is that if Alaska is
trying to raise the standards so that it really nmeans sonething
to graduate from high school in Alaska, "and here conmes Johnson
who has got one of those [Alaska diplomas] and he can't even
read. "

Nunmber 1488

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS asked if a student can take the exam either
wi th accommobdati ons or nodifications.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -7- March 28, 2001



CHAIR BUNDE said the student can take it wth accommobdati ons
only.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS concluded that only those acconmmodations
listed in the booklet, "Participation GGuidelines for Al aska
Students in State Assessnents" are all owabl e.

CHAI R BUNDE explained that accommobdations allow a student to
take the test but do not affect the outconme of the test. An
accomodati on might be soneone reading a math question to the
student, but a nodification would be using a calculator to do
the math test if it is skill in basic calculation that is being
t est ed.

Number 1560

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS observed that the | anguage does not provide
any all owance for nodifications.

CHAI R BUNDE said that was correct.

REPRESENTATI VE QGQUESS said she thought the provision for a
portfolio "is great |anguage because it's giving an alternative
to non-special ed kids and | think we need to do that; we need
to give two roads."”

CHAIR BUNDE noted that a classic portfolio requires school
participation, not just a student's individual effort.

REPRESENTATI VE  GQUESS asked for clarification about t he
certificate of achievenment, specifically, is the school district
going to decide what information is printed on it?

CHAIR BUNDE said there are two things the school district nust
include, the portions of the test passed and the attendance
record. Then, if there is additional information that the
district wants to add, such as to nake the student nore
enpl oyabl e, that option would be avail abl e.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS suggested that the CS not just refer to the
nunber of students in each school who have passed the conpetency
test, but also to each benchrmark as well.

CHAIR BUNDE said the Quality Schools Initiative already requires
t hat .

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 8- March 28, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE GUESS suggested that in addition to reporting
"each school district's progress,” also reporting the progress
of each school within the district.

Number 1709

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE concurred, "because you want [reporting]
individually as well as collectively."

Nunber 1715

CHAI R BUNDE suggested making a conceptual anendnent [Amendnent
1] so that Page 4, line 10 requires reporting of each school
district's and school's progress. He clarified that what is
wanted is a total report for the district and then a report by
school. In sunmary, Amendnent 1 was:

On page 4, line 10, add "and each school's" after
"each school district's" so it will read, "each school
district's and each school's progress in aligning
curriculum...”

There bei ng no objection, Amendnent 1 was adopt ed.

Nunmber 1749
REPRESENTATI VE GUESS suggested meking a simlar change on page
4, line 14 regarding intervention efforts, saying that those who
cone from large districts especially want to know what each
school is doing. She noved that as a conceptual anmendnent
[ Arendnent 2]. In sunmary, Anmendnent 2 was:
On page 4, line 14, add "each school"™ before "each
school district" so it wll read, "a description of
intervention efforts by each school and school
district ..."

There bei ng no objection, Arendnent 2 was adopt ed.
Number 1788

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS asked, "Is it the intent that we are going
to require a new student to take the examin tenth grade?"

CHAIR BUNDE said every student who is on a diploma track is
expected to do so.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 9- March 28, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE GUESS expressed concern about possibly "setting
our kids up for failure” if they are not ready for the exam
She wanted to make sure that taking the test would be a val uable
experience for a student and not a setback.

Nunmber 1858

CHAIR BUNDE rem nded the commttee that taking the test in the
tenth grade is intended to be diagnostic, telling students,
"This is what you ought to be able to do as a senior."

Nunber 1877

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS wanted to clarify that page 4, line 25
nmeant that the exam nation scores are going to be shown on
student transcripts.

CHAI R BUNDE said that was the intent.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS suggested adding | anguage that says if you
pass, you can't go back and take the test again. She envisioned
hi gh-achi eving kids who would want to take the test again to
raise their scores, thereby increasing sone costs for the school
districts.

CHAIR BUNDE noted that it says students are to take the test if
t hey have not successfully passed it.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS concl uded, "So once you' ve passed it, you
can't go back."

CHAI R BUNDE stressed that the purpose of the test is to docunent
m ni num conpet enci es.

REPRESENTATI VE PORTER asked, "If that is the goal, why are we
putting the score on the transcript?”

CHAIR BUNDE said the intent of that is to reward those who have
wor ked hard at achieving the mninmm He clarified that the
score goes on the transcript, not on the dipl ona.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS noted that it said, "and di ploma."
CHAI R BUNDE said that was right; when he replied before, he had

been thinking about the reading and witing endorsenments on the
di pl ona.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -10- March 28, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE PORTER said he thought |anguage was needed to
clarify.

CHAIR BUNDE summarized that the conmttee wanted an anmendnent
[ Anendnment 3] clarifying that the scores to go on the transcript
and the endorsenents to go on the diplona. In sunmmary,
Amendnent 3 was:

On page 4, line 26, add "as endorsenents” before "on
the pupil's diplom" and add "to show which sections
were passed"” after "diplom" so it wll read, "The
results of the examnation of a pupil under this

section shall be reflected in that pupil's transcript
and, as endorsenents on the pupil's diplom, to show
whi ch sections were passed, as directed by..."

There being no objection, Arendnent 3 was adopt ed.
Number 1960

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS observed that the CS changes the
effective date of HB 94 from 2002 to 2004. He wanted to know
when the tests woul d be redone by DCE.

CHAIR BUNDE noted that the high school conpetency test is not
intended to be static, but a dynam c thing. Currently, DCE is
in the process of rewiting the math section of the test, making
it nore arithmetic than higher nath. Apparently, that wll be

done by 2004. But all three sections wll be under constant
review and new questions will be added and taken out. Al aska
will be sonething |like Texas, which is not only rewiting its

test, but meking it nore difficult as students becone nore
proficient.

BRUCE JOHNSON, Deputy Comm ssioner, Departnment of Education and
Early Devel opnment, confirmed that what Chair Bunde had said was
"right on target."

Number 2046

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE said he had heard throughout the testinony
about the high rate of teacher turnover in many districts. He
wondered if it mght be of benefit to address the issue of
turnover by having it reported. "I see that directly correl ated
to the outcone of how students do," he said.

CHAI R BUNDE agreed that woul d be useful information.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -11- March 28, 2001



Number 2100

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE noved conceptual Anendnent 4, "that we
include in the reporting the rate of turnover in certificated
per sonnel and superintendents" (who do not have to be

certificated). In sunmary, Amendnent 4 was:
On page 4 after Iline 15, add "(7) nunber and
percentage of turnover in certificated personnel and
superi nt endents", whi ch woul d add a report

requi renent.
There bei ng no objection, Arendnent 4 was adopt ed.
Number 2141

REPRESENTATIVE JOULE also noted that when teachers had
testified, one of the things that cane through |oud and clear
was the enphasis that they thought needed to be ...[placed on]
t eacher training. He suggested that the conmttee also should
keep track of how the districts are working on in-service
teacher training related to the standards.

Nunmber 2178

KAREN MCARTHY, Staff to Representative Bunde, Al aska State
Legislature, noted that on page 4, line 9 of the work draft,
where it calls for a description of the resources provided, the
commttee could clarify that it wants to know not just what's
going in to the districts, but what they're doing with it.

CHAIR BUNDE said that should provide the information to which
Representative Joul e had referred.

Number 2203

REPRESENTATI VE CGREEN asked if the committee was going to be
hearing testinony from DCE.

CHAI R BUNDE said DCE personnel were present to answer specific
guestions and that their testinmony would be taken at the next
meet i ng.

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN asked if the commttee was requiring that

anything be reported back from those places where teachers are
teachi ng cl asses that they have not been certificated to teach.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -12- March 28, 2001



CHAIR BUNDE said he thinks that is covered under "aligning
curriculum and performnce standards” on page 4, itens 3,4, and
5.

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN noted, "It doesn't say in either of those
[itens] that you're going to nake sure that a math major is
teaching math rather than sonebody el se.”

CHAIR BUNDE said he didn't think the state could require the
| ocal district to do that. "They have an option to let us know
that if ... they feel that's a problem for them" he said. He
then referred the question to M. Johnson.

MR, JOHNSON said that information would be reported by al
schools pursuing accreditation, but that it is not nandatory
t hat school s pursue accreditation.

REPRESENTATI VE CGREEN pointed out that it is going to be
difficult to achieve conpetence in key subjects if the state
does not nmake sure those teaching the subject have that
conpetence. He asked how the state is going to know that.

MR. JOHNSON said that at present, the state does not require
school districts to provide that information

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN asked if the commttee wanted to know t hat.
CHAI R BUNDE asked the will of the conmmttee.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS expressed concern about naking conpliance
too onerous on the districts, noting that there are sone schools
in which one teacher is teaching across several disciplines and
there wasn't nmuch the district could do to change that.

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN said that he was not asking the district to
do anything about it, just to report that it has only one
t eacher. "If we find out that students in four schools are
doing poorly and that those schools don't have the teaching
staff, that would be good to know, " he said.

CHAI R BUNDE agr eed.

TAPE 01-18, SIDE B

Nunmber 0001

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -13- March 28, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE GREEN noted that the state has a problem [wth
education] that it is trying to solve, and he thinks part of
that problem may be that teachers are teaching the wong

subjects. "That's not the fault of the school; the school can't
hire those kinds of people. But we ought to know that,"” he
enphasi zed.

CHAIR BUNDE summarized the proposed conceptual anmendnent
[ Arendnent 5] as, "We would add under the reporting requirenents
a report on the nunber of teachers teaching out of their area of
endor senent . "

REPRESENTATI VE PORTER suggested addi ng specific reference to the
subj ect matter areas covered by the high school conpetency test:
reading, witing, and math.

M5. MCARTHY asked if the commttee wanted the infornation
reported by school or by district.

CHAIR BUNDE suggested drawing up the Amendnent 5 to mrror
Amendnent 4, requiring reporting both by school and by district.

Nunber 0175

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS asked what the state would do with the
information. He noted that the state couldn't send the district
a teacher or require that they hire one, and said he thought
"we're just getting really too involved in the district job, and
we need to stay out of that and let the district do [it]

CHAI R BUNDE warned, "This will be further amunition to increase
[the] foundation formula or do sonething to add nore teachers.™

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN t ook issue, saying:

Math is one of our glaring deficiencies ... [and] if
we find that there is a direct correlation [between
student proficiency and teacher training], then maybe
it's incunbent upon the legislature to say, "OK we've
got a problem J[and this is what it is]. Do we want
to solve it or not?" ... W're trying to get to the
bottom of the problem and solve it. So let's get the
information ...

Nunmber 0313

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -14- March 28, 2001



REPRESENTATIVE WLSON pointed out that there mght be no
correlation, but it could be that schools that have only one
teacher shoul d have two.

CHAI R BUNDE acknowl edged that there is always the danger of
asking questions and finding that the cone in |arge nunbers of
dollars, but in that case, at least the state would have the
information. Again, he stated Representative G een' s conceptual
amendnent that would require an additional report of the nunber
of teachers in each district and school teaching core courses
out of the area of their endorsenent.

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN of fered t hat concept ual anmendnent
[ Amendnent 5] .

M5. MCARTHY asked if the conmttee wanted to say, "in core
courses,” or to specify "reading, witing, and nathematics".

CHAI R BUNDE suggested that it be linked to the fields covered by
the conpetency test, and that those could change, so it mght be

good to say, "in areas tested by the high school conpetency
exan'.
Number 0466

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON thought it mght be hard to define the
areas in which a person is teaching because so nuch teaching
today integrates subject matter from two or nore fields of
st udy.

CHAIR BUNDE noted that the commttee was asking not just about
hi gh school teachers, but also in grades K-12.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS referred to the nationw de teacher
shortage and wondered "if we're not really shooting ourselves in
the foot here by requiring that only certain teachers be hired
and others not be hired.” He thought what the commttee was
effectively saying is that schools were to hire only people who
had certain qualifications, and "that we're m cro-managi ng what
is the district's responsibility, and I don't think we should go
t here. ™

Number 0613
CHAIR BUNDE suggested agreeing to disagree, and called for a

vote on Anmendnent 5. In summary, Anendnent 5 was:

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -15- March 28, 2001



On page 4, after Anmendnent 4, add: "(8) nunber of
teachers in districts and schools who are teaching
outside of their area of endorsement in areas tested
by the Hi gh School Conpetency Test." which would add a
report requirenent.

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Joule, QCuess,
Green, WIson, Porter, and Bunde voted for Anendnent 5.
Representative Stevens voted against Amendnent 5. Ther ef or e,

Amendnent 5 passed.

REPRESENTATI VE PORTER w shed to state for the record that
certification or an endorsenent in nmath doesn't nean a person
can teach it.

CHAIR BUNDE recalled college professors who were very
know edgeable in their fields and "nore of an inpedinent to
| earning than they were an asset." Just having the know edge is
not enough; one needs the pedagogical skills, too, he observed.
He said from what he has seen, the best predictor of [student]
success is a caring, talented teacher.

Nunmber 0678

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked to return to Representative Joule's
anendnent [ Arendnent 4] concerning the turnover of certificated
personnel and superintendents. She suggested asking for not
only the nunber, but also for the percentage.

CHAIR BUNDE viewed that as a technical anendnent. There being
no objection, the change was adopt ed.

Number 0762

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS nentioned that there was not |anguage on
whether or not the commttee wants the results of the
exam nation on the transcripts or diplomas after 2004.

REPRESENTATI VE BUNDE said the legislation does not <call for
showing scores after that date, but only for showng the
endor senent . He added that districts wishing to do so could
i nclude scores on transcripts. The fact that a student has a
di pl oma shows that he or she had denonstrated conpetence in al

t hree areas.

Nunmber 0918

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -16- March 28, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE GUESS observed that it doesn't actually prohibit
a student who has passed the test fromtaking it again. She did
not want to burden school districts with extra costs.

Number 0939

CHAIR BUNDE stated for the record that once a student has passed
the test, that student is not allowed to take the test again.

Nunmber 0956

M5. MCARTHY said she thought she had found the answers to
Representative Guess's questions on page 2, lines 16 and 17,
where it says, "a pupil who fails the exam nation required under
this section shall be re-tested at |east once." "What we're
getting at there is that you can't re-test just because you want
a higher score,” she said.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS said that |anguage doesn't say to her that
a person who has passed the test can't take it again.

REPRESENTATI VE PORTER suggested adding "and nay not re-take the
test” at the end of the sentence on page 23.

CHAIR BUNDE said with the commttee's perm ssion, that amendnent
[ Avendnment 6] would be nmade. In sunmary, Amendnent 6 was:

On page 2, line 18, add: "A student who passes any
portion of the test may not re-take that portion of
the test,” after "portions of the exam nation that the
pupil has not passed.” so it will read, "A pupil who
fails the examnation required under this section
shall be retested at |east once during a school year
on those portions of the exam nation the pupil has not
passed. A student who passes any portion of the test
may not re-take that portion of the test.”

There was no objection. Therefore, Anendnent 6 was adopt ed.

CHAI R BUNDE r e- enphasi zed that what was being tested was m ni num
conpet ency, basic literacy.

Nunmber 1061
REPRESENTATI VE JOULE observed, "Tinmes change, things change ....

Are we ... going to cone back and re-assess what m ninmum
conpet ency woul d be?"

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -17- March 28, 2001



CHAIR BUNDE replied, "No, but the board wll." He clarified
that he neant the state school board and DCE. He noted that it
was already on the record that these tests are a living creature
and are revanped. He again nentioned that Texas has noved up
its mninmum requirenment, and pointed out that the education his
teachers thought prepared himfor |life would not prepare today's
st udent .

Nunber 1135

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS said he was having trouble wth the
concept of mninmum conpetencies and at the sane tinme, reporting
test scores. "If they achieve a mninmm conpetency, that's
good, they're done,"” he said. "On the other hand, why are we
bothering with what the scores are and placing them on the
transcript?”

CHAIR BUNDE remnded him that would be done only for the
intervening two years, from 2002 to 2004, and said it was being
done only to reward those students who are currently working
hard to pass the tests.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS noted that the endorsenent would do that,
and the score was not needed.

Number 1201

CHAI R BUNDE expressed concern about students who worked hard to
pass the test, which was then postponed as a requirenent for
graduati on.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON said she thought that putting down that
t hey have passed the conpetency test is sufficient reward.

REPRESENTATI VE PORTER concurr ed. Putting the scores on
transcripts mght be appropriate because that docunent also
shows grades for the various courses.

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN pointed out that if a person applies for a
driver's license, the applicant is graded but the grade never
shows after he or she has passed.

CHAIR BUNDE reiterated that his goal was to give sonme kind of
tenporary reward for students who have prepared for the test;
but, he acknow edged, "Maybe that is just expressing ny
frustration about the districts that have chosen not to take it

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 18- March 28, 2001



seriously up to this point." He asked the wll of the
conm ttee.

Nunber 1332

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS sunmarized, "So the choice is whether or
not we put scores on the transcripts or whether it [the
transcript] just indicates that the student has passed or not
passed.

CHAIR BUNDE said it could be the sane basic endorsenent that
goes on the diploma, which will list the sections of the exam
t he student passed.

REPRESENTATI VE PORTER observed that this only pertains to the
two years before the test goes into effect, and he thinks "pass"”
or "not pass" is enough. He offered the conceptual anmendnent
[ Avendment 7] that during this interim period, the transcript
and the diploma only indicate that the student passed or did not
pass each individual conpetency test.

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE sought clarification about what was going
to be done after that two-year period. He then exclained, "They
have to pass all three [as opposed to the scores]! That's fine;
that's good!"

Number 1404

CHAI R BUNDE added that for those who do not pass the conpetency
t est, the certificate of achievenent would indicate the
attendance record and portions of the test that had been passed.
There woul d be no scores shown there.

CHAI R BUNDE asked if there was any objection to Amendnent 7. In
summary, Anmendnent 7 was:

On page 4, line 25-27, add: "to show which portions of
t he exam nation were passed and which were not passed"
after "pupil's transcript” so that it will read, "The
results of the examnation of a pupil under this
section shall be reflected in that pupil's transcript,
to show which portions of the exam nation were passed
and which were not passed, and as endorsenents on the
pupil's diploma, to show which sections were passed,
as directed by the state Board of Education and Early
Devel opnent ".

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -19- March 28, 2001



There bei ng no objection, Amendnent 7 was adopt ed.
Number 1449

REPRESENTATI VE PORTER wi shed to say for the record that there is
a lot that has to happen before the standard is raised for
passing the test.

CHAIR BUNDE added that the State Board of education has to
endor se any changes.

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE wanted to make sure that dropout rates
woul d be reported.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS sai d yes, they are required.
Number 1497

CHAI R BUNDE offered Amendnent 8 [22-LSOB6\J.1], copies of which
were distributed. Anmendnent 8 was:

Page 5, following line 5:

Insert a new bill section to read:

"* Sec. 7. The wuncodified law of the State of
Al aska i s anmended by adding a new section to read:

REQUI RED REPCRT. The Departnent of Education and
Early Devel opnment shall, by January 14, 2002, report
back to t he Al aska State Legi sl ature W th
recomendati ons for

(1) establishing a process that allows
i ssuance of a high school diploma to a child with a
disability based on a portfolio of work, as described
under AS 14.03.075(c)(1)(C, enacted in sec. 3 of this
Act; and

(2) eval uating the process described under
(1) of this section.”

Renunber the followi ng bill sections accordingly.
Page 5, line 8:

Delete "sec. 7"

| nsert "sec. 8"

REPRESENTATI VE PORTER noved Anendnent 8.

CHAI R BUNDE expl ai ned that Anmendnent 8 addresses sonething in
the Senate version that is causing concern in the educational

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 20- March 28, 2001



community. He said he is offering two options. One is a waiver
that under "extraordinary and exceptional circunstances” allows
a diploma to be awarded to a student who has not passed the
conpetency test. The other option is to provide an appeals
process that would be available to a student who did not get a
di ploma. He noted that the state school board wants to weigh in
on the matter, and because there are two years available, all
the amendnent says is that the state school board and DOE coul d
give the conmmttee their wi sdom on this by next January [2001]
and the commttee would re-address it then.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON thought there already are processes in
pl ace that all ow appeal s of decisions nade by the schools.

CHAIR BUNDE said that was certainly the case for students wth
| EPs. He referred the question to M. Johnson.

MR, JOHNSON replied that generally speaking, a local school
board woul d have an appeal s process for any nenber of the public
or any student.

CHAI R BUNDE rai sed the question of what the state would do if a
| ocal school board were to decide that every student should be
granted a di pl ona.

Nunber 1647

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON said there is a process now in every
district for students who do not get diploms to appeal. She
wondered if the legislature wanted to "put sonme teeth init."

CHAIR BUNDE said he thinks there needs to be sone kind of
outside review either for a waiver or for an appeal "because if
it's just the local school board in a smll town, can you
imgine the pressure on the local school board if it's the
boss's kid who is involved?”

REPRESENTATI VE PORTER said he thinks that is where the criteria
for the waiver would cone in. If the criteria would not allow

an exception for the boss's kid, then the |ocal school board is
of f the hook.

CHAIR BUNDE noted that the anmendnent suggests that the state
school board or DOE conme back to the commttee with suggestions
in these two arenas for students for whom there should be sone
exceptions.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -21- March 28, 2001



Nunber 1747

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON observed that there are likely to be nmany
appeal s.

CHAIR BUNDE said that is why he wants it to come back to the
commttee because, for the record, he envisions that this would
be only for very extraordinary circunstances. He called for
"very high sideboards” around the process and for review outside
the district.

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON cautioned that Ilawsuits from students
denied diplomas could place high expenses on |ocal school
districts.

Nunmber 1776

CHAIR BUNDE said the courts could require that a person go
through all the procedures provided before com ng before the
court. He said the state should plan on lawsuits, saying, "I
know they're going to sue the state because we've got the
deepest pockets.™

Number 1792

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS expressed concern about the vagueness of
such terns as "late" and "rare and unusual."” He said he wanted
to assure equity and due process for all students.

CHAI R BUNDE suggested | anguage such as, "
and unusual circunstances"”.

for pupils with rare

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS wanted to address diplonmas for students
who enter school |ate.

CHAIR BUNDE reiterated the concern about students fromdistricts
with low standards comng into Al aska schools late in their
school careers. He wanted recomrendations from the state schoo
board and DCE, but said, "W will be the final arbiters of what
is appropriate.™

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS requested tighter definitions of "late"
and "rare and unusual . "

Nunber 1878

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -22- March 28, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE GUESS expressed strong support for the anmendnent,
saying there needs to be the kind of public process it
est abl i shes.

REPRESENTATI VE PORTER agr eed.

CHAI R BUNDE suggested dropping words so the |anguage would be
"conpet ency exam nation waiver process for pupils with rare and
unusual circunstances that nerit waiver."

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS wonder ed i f "rare and unusual "
enconpassed the student entering |ate.

CHAI R BUNDE t hought it woul d.
Number 1796

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON thought the mlitary nmade nost transfers
in sunmer so that children do not have to enter school m d-year

CHAI R BUNDE expressed concern about children of non-mlitary
famlies.

Number 1997

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS said Coast CGuard famlies have a choice
about when they are re-assigned, but he didn't want to create
barriers to their comng to Al aska. He thought there should be
reference to late arrivals that would speak to the mlitary
transfers.

CHAIR BUNDE rem nded himthat current tests put reading at about
the seventh grade |evel. He added that some parents m ght want
to put their students in a district where the diploma really
nmeant sonet hi ng beyond attendance.

Nunber 2032

CHAIR BUNDE directed attention back to the conceptual anmendnent
before the conmttee that would delete reference to "late,"
noting that Representative Stevens had spoken against it. For
the record, he said, in his mnd, "rare" or "unusual" includes
people who enter high school after the start of their tenth
grade year. He then nentioned that the tape recordings of

commttee discussions are wused by those seeking a clear
understanding of legislative intent.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -23- March 28, 2001



Nunber 2087

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON suggested |eaving the anmendnent as it is
and letting the state school board and DCE nake their
reconmendat i ons.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS said he had no objection so long as it is
clear that "rare and unusual' includes "late,"” and the appeals
process is the key thing.

CHAIR BUNDE again noted that the state school board has
indicated very strongly that it wants to weigh in on this.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS asked if it is the school district and
not DCE that awards the dipl ona.

CHAIR BUNDE said it is the state school board that sets the
standards for the diploma. The district nmust seek any exenption
fr om DCE.

MR. JOHNSON confirmed that DOE sets the m ninmum standards for a
high school diploma and that [|ocal school districts nmay go
beyond t hat.

Nunmber 2158

CHAI R BUNDE announced that Anmendnent 8 was before the committee.
There being no objection, Anmendnent 8 was adopted with no
changes.

CHAIR BUNDE then directed attention to Anmendnent 9 [22-
LSC362\J. 2], <concerning the portfolio, before the conmttee.
Amendnent 9 was:

Page 5, following line 5:

Insert a new bill section to read:

"* Sec. 7. The wuncodified law of the State of
Al aska i s anended by adding a new section to read:

REQUI RED REPCORT. The Departnent of Education and
Early Devel opnent shall, by January 14, 2002, report
back to t he Al aska State Legi sl ature W th
reconmendat i ons for

(1) a conpetency exam nation waiver process
for pupils who enter the school system late and for
other pupils with rare or unusual circunstances that
merit a waiver; and

(2) an appeals process for a pupil who is

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 24- March 28, 2001



denied a high school diplom.™
Renunber the followi ng bill sections accordingly.

Page 5, line 8:
Del ete "sec. 7"
| nsert "sec. 8"

REPRESENTATI VE PORTER noved Amendnent 9.

CHAI R BUNDE expl ai ned that Anendnment 9 would all ow i ssuance of a
hi gh school diploma to a child wth a disability based on a
portfolio of work. What the portfolio would |ook Iike would
depend upon information forthcomng from the state school board
and DCE.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS asked if this provision was not already in
the bill.

CHAI R BUNDE explained that Anmendnent 9 relates specifically to
di sabl ed students. It requires DOE to give the conmttee
reconmendati ons about whether the provision for a portfolio
should be included and, if so, what the portfolio mght |ook
li ke.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS asked if there was a reason for Amendnent 9
specifying "child with disability" when in the bill, any child
can receive a diplom through a portfolio.

CHAIR BUNDE said this would be an expansion to include those
kids with learning disabilities to whom the portfolio m ght be
an appropriate way of denonstrating conpetency.

REPRESENTATIVE GUESS said she was seeing an inconsistency
between the bill and Anendnent 9.

CHAI R BUNDE acknow edged that she had a good point and said he
woul d rather delete the specific provision for a child with a
disability and just establish a process for issuance of a high
school diploma based on a portfolio of work.

CHAI R BUNDE said the portfolio is provided under an |EP.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS observed that a student who doesn't have an
| EP only can take the exam

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -25- March 28, 2001



CHAIR BUNDE clarified that Anmendnent 9 would sinply require a
report back from the school board and DOE regarding the
portfolio.

Number 2350

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS thought it would be interesting in the
future to see whether virtually all students with IEPs will be
receiving high school diploms while one-third of all students
in the mainstream program are not.

CHAIR BUNDE didn't think that would be the case, as ten percent
of high school students are not receiving diploms now for
vari ous reasons, and sone districts are reporting that children
are rising to the challenge.

TAPE 01-19, SIDE A

Nunber 0001

CHAIR BUNDE said he wanted to keep the doors open as w de as
possi ble while still maintaining a standard.

Nunber 0036

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON commented that several commttee nenbers
thought it was going to be possible for regular students to opt
out of the test through a portfolio.

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE wanted to know if it would be possible for
a person to use a portfolio to denonstrate a higher |evel of
achi evenment than through the high school qualifying exit exam

CHAI R BUNDE said again that he is asking for feedback from DOE
on this by January of next year [2002]. He said he could not
answer Representative Joule's question now.

Number 0134

REPRESENTATI VE PORTER said there is a category to which he keeps
alluding and that is the group of regular, normal students who
do not get any special consideration and who do not pass the
test. He noted that there are sone people who just can't take
tests, and he wondered if that is an identifiable category.

CHAIR BUNDE said reading he has done indicates that there are
actual but very rare cases of test phobia. There also are

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 26- March 28, 2001



peopl e under IEPs who have to take the test in another room
because they are auditory people who need to read questions
al oud. He thought this was one nore area in which the conmttee
coul d consi der recommendations in January.

REPRESENTATI VE PORTER said if test phobia type is a rare and
identifiable condition, then it would fit under the "rare and
unusual circunstances.” He said he fears setting up so many
accommodations that a bright student who doesn't want to work
very hard can find a | oophol e.

CHAIR BUNDE said he was beginning to think Anmendnent 9 was
redundant. Under the "rare and unusual circunstances,” a waiver
m ght consist of a portfolio. That mght be one waiver process.
He said he would |like to withdraw the anendnent and listen to a
w de nunber of ideas about the nechanism of a waiver, which
m ght include a portfolio.

Nurmber 0374
REPRESENTATI VE GUESS respectful |y di sagreed.

CHAIR BUNDE indicated wllingness to call for a vote on
Amendnent 9.

Nunber 0418

REPRESENTATI VE CGREEN asked if a student truly had a phobia,
woul dn't that be well known in advance?

CHAIR BUNDE said he would guess that the person wth a test
phobi a woul d be under an | EP.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS said he needed to have a better
understandi ng of the IEP. The parents have trenendous power over
what that |EP says, and that IEP will determine what is required
in this portfolio for this child to get a high school diploma.
He expressed concern about two tracks, the [|EP process
controlled by the parent and the other process that may involve
an appeal to DOE, thereby setting up two extrenely different
| evel s of requirenents for a high school diploma, one with a
tremendous anmount of influence by the parents.

CHAIR BUNDE said his view of an IEP "is nore equal."” It doesn't
go into effect unless the parent signs off, but it involves the
teacher, the school nurse/psychologist, the principal, and

whoever on the other side, and there are those who feel it's

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -27- March 28, 2001



wei ghted toward the district because the parent is having to
stand up to "people in suits.”

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS thinks it is legally weighted toward the
parents, and woul d appreci ate hearing nore about it.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS rem nded the commttee that the standards
are the same; it is the nethodology of assessnent that is
different. It is not a matter of lowering the standards for the
| EP students, but we're having the sanme standards but allowi ng a
different nmethod of assessnent, and that a portfolio is just an
alternative way of denonstrating that the students has reached
t he standards.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS noted, "Nowhere does it say what that
portfolio is."

CHAI R BUNDE enphasized that Anmendnent 9 asks DCE to cone back
and tell the commttee what that portfolio will look |ike, and
then the conmttee can say yes, no, maybe, or whatever.

Nunmber 0647

CHAI R BUNDE announced that Amendment 9 was before the committee.
There bei ng no objection, Arendnent 9 was adopt ed.

CHAI R BUNDE then announced that CSHB 94 as anended was before
the coomittee, and that he wi shed to take public testinony on it
before considering sending the bill to the next commttee of
referral

ADJ OQURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Special Conmmttee on Education neeting was adjourned at 9:52
a. m

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 28- March 28, 2001



